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A Note About the Author 
 

Charlotte Bronte was born on 21st 
April 1816. She lived in the village 
of Haworth, in West Yorkshire, in 
the north of England. Her father was 
a clergyman. He worked in the 
church at Haworth. 

Charlotte had four sisters. They 
were Maria, Elizabeth, Emily and 
Anne. Charlotte had one brother -

Branwell. Charlotte was not pretty and her eyes were weak. But 
Charlotte was clever and she had a strong character. 

In 1824, Maria, Elizabeth, Charlotte and Emily were pupils at a 
school called Cowan Bridge. The school was fifty miles from 
Haworth. It was a bad school and many of the children became 
sick. In 1825, Maria and Elizabeth died. Charlotte and Emily went 
home. From 1825 to 1831, Charlotte's father taught his children at 
home. 

In 1831, Charlotte was fifteen years old. She was a pupil at a 
school called Roe Head. Later, she was a teacher at this school. 

In 1842, Charlotte and Emily studied in Brussels in Belgium. 
Charlotte was a clever student. But she was unhappy. She fell in 
love with a married man. And she returned to England. 



Charlotte, Emily, Anne and Branwell wrote stories and they 
drew pictures. They also wrote poetry. Branwell was going to be 
an artist. But he became ill. He drank alcohol and he took drugs. 

The Bronte sisters sent their stories to a publisher. In the 1850s, 
women's stories were not often published. So Charlotte wrote her 
books with the name, Currer Bell. Emily wrote Wuthering Heights 
with the name, Ellis Bell. And Anne wrote Agnes Grey with the 
name, Acton Bell. Their books were very popular. Soon people 
wanted to meet these authors. Then they were surprised. These 
good writers were women! 

Charlotte Bronte's novels are: The Professor, Jane Eyre 
(1847), Shirley (1849) and Vilette (1853). Jane Eyre is one of the 
most popular stories in English. In 1847, people read Jane Eyre 
and they were surprised. Women did not often speak about their 
hopes and their thoughts. Women did not talk to men in this way! 

In 1848, Emily and Branwell died. Anne died the next year. 
Charlotte lived with her old father. She was now a famous author. 
People wanted to meet her. Charlotte travelled to London and she 
met poets, artists and writers. She visited theatres, museums and 
art galleries. In 1854, Charlotte married a clergyman, Arthur 
Nicholls. On 31st March 1855, Charlotte Bronte died. She was 38 
years old. 



A Note About This Story 

Time: The 1830s. Place: The north of England. 
Early in the nineteenth century, there were no cars or trains. 

People rode horses. People travelled in coaches or in carriages 
pulled by horses. Journeys were long and difficult. Most people 
lived in the countryside. Rich people had large houses and many 
servants. 

Rich children learnt their lessons in their homes. A teacher 
lived in their house. Some poor children lived at their schools. 
Some of these schools were very bad. The buildings were cold and 
uncomfortable. These children did not have enough food. Their 
teachers often beat them. 

The Brontes were poor. The three sisters worked as 
governesses. Governesses lived in the homes of rich families. They 
taught the children of these families. 

In the story, Jane Eyre, Charlotte Bronte wrote about her own 
life. Jane was unhappy in a bad school. Charlotte was unhappy too. 
Jane Eyre was not pretty. But she was clever and she was good. 
Charlotte was not pretty. But she was intelligent and she worked 
hard. In the story, Jane Eyre becomes a governess. Charlotte was a 
governess in the homes of two rich families. She hated the work. 

In 1851, there were about 25000 governesses in England. 
Many poor women from good families worked as governesses. 
They were not married. Governesses were not paid well. 



The People in This Story 

 



My Story Begins 

In 1825, I was ten years old. My father and mother were dead. I 
lived with my aunt and uncle, Mr. and Mr.s Reed. Their house 
was called Gateshead Hall. The house was in Yorkshire, in the 
north of England. My Aunt and Uncle Reed had two children - a 
boy, John, and a girl, Eliza. 

I liked my Uncle Reed and he liked me. But in 1825, my 
uncle died. After that, I was very unhappy. My Aunt Reed did 
not like me. And John and Eliza were unkind to me. 

It was a cold, rainy day in December. All of us were in the 
house. I wanted to be alone. I wanted to read. I opened a book. 
Then I heard my Cousin John's voice. 

'Jane! Jane Eyre! Where are you?' John shouted. He came 
into the room and he saw me. 

 



'Why are you reading my book?' he asked. 'Give it to me!' 
John took the book. He hit my head with it. I screamed. John 

hit me again. I pulled his hair and I kicked him. 
'Help! Help, Mamma!' John shouted. 'Jane Eyre is hurting me!' 
Aunt Reed ran into the room. She pulled me away from John. 

 



'John hit me with a book,' I said. 'I hate him. And I hate you 
too!' 

'You are a bad girl, Jane,' my aunt said. 'Why do you hate me?' 
'You don't like me,' I replied. 'John and Eliza are unkind to me. 

I want to leave Gateshead Hall.' 
'You want to leave!' Aunt Reed said. 'Where will you go? Your 

parents are dead. You cannot live alone.' 
Aunt Reed thought for a moment. 

'My friend, Mr. Brocklehurst, is the owner of a school,' she 
said. 'I will send you to Mr. Brocklehurst's school.' 

A few days later, Mr. Brocklehurst came to Gateshead Hall. He 
was a very tall man. His eyes were dark and his face was cruel. 

'Jane Eyre,' he said to me. 'God does not like bad children. God 
punishes bad children, Jane Eyre.' 

'God will punish John Reed,' I replied. 'John Reed hits me and 
he shouts at me.' 

'That is not true. You are a liar, Jane Eyre,' Mr. Brocklehurst 
said. 'You must not tell lies. And you must not live here with your 
cousins. You will come to Lowood School. You will become a 
good girl.' 

'I want to come to your school, sir,' I said. 'I want to leave this 
house.' 

'Bad girls are punished at my school, Jane Eyre,' Mr. 
Brocklehurst said. 'The girls work very hard at Lowood.' 



'I will work hard. I will be a good pupil, Mr. Brocklehurst,' I 
said. 

 

Two weeks later, I left Gateshead Hall. I went to Lowood School. 



Lowood School 

It was the month of January. I arrived at Lowood School at night. 
A servant took me up some stairs and into a big bedroom. There 
were many beds in the room. The girls in the beds were asleep. 
The servant took me to an empty bed. 1 put on my nightclothes 
and I got into bed. Soon, 1 was asleep too. 

I woke up very early. A loud bell was ringing. The bedroom was 
dark and cold. I watched the other girls. They washed in cold 
water and they dressed quickly. 

 



There was a plain brown dress next to my bed. And there was a 
pair of ugly, heavy shoes. I washed quickly. Then I put on my new 
clothes. 

I was very hungry. I followed the other girls down the stairs. 
We sat down at long tables in a large dining-room. Our food was 
terrible. 
'The food is bad again,' one of the girls said. 
'Stand up!' a teacher shouted. 'Don't talk!' 

We stood up. We did not speak. We walked into a big 
schoolroom and we sat down. 

There were about eighty girls in the schoolroom. And there 
were four classes. The oldest girls were in the fourth class. I was in 
the first class. 

Four teachers came into the room and we began our lessons. 
The lessons were not interesting. First, we read some pages in a 
book. Then our teacher asked us questions about those pages. 

After four hours, we went outside. It was very cold. Very soon, 
a bell rang. Lessons started again. 

Three weeks passed. One afternoon, the head teacher came into the 
schoolroom. The head teacher's name was Miss Temple. Mr. 
Brocklehurst was with her. We all stood up. I stood behind an 
older girl. I did not want Mr. Brocklehurst to see me. 

Mr. Brocklehurst walked slowly round the room. Everybody 
was very quiet. And then I dropped my book! 
Mr. Brocklehurst stopped walking. He looked at me. 



'Ah! The new girl,' he said. 'Come here, Jane Eyre!' Then he 
pointed at two of the older girls. 'You two girls — put Jane Eyre 
on that high chair!' he said. 

'Look at Jane Eyre, everybody!' Mr. Brocklehurst 
said. 'This child is bad. She is a liar. She will be 
punished! Miss Temple! Teachers! Girls! Do not talk 
to this child.' 
Then he spoke to me again. 

'Jane Eyre, you must stand on that chair for two 
hours,' he said. 'You are a bad girl!' 

That evening, I cried and cried. But Miss Temple 
was kind to me. 

'You are a good pupil, Jane,' she said. 'And you 
are not a bad girl. I am your friend, Jane.' 
'Thank you, Miss Temple,' I said. 

Lowood School was in an unhealthy place. The buildings were wet 
and cold. Mr. Brocklehurst owned the school. He was a rich man. 
But he did not buy warm clothes for us. And he did not buy good 
food for us. Everybody hated him. 

In the spring, many of the girls became sick. Some of them left 
the school. They never came back. Many of the girls died. 

That spring was a terrible time. We had no lessons. Miss 
Temple and the other teachers took care of the 



sick pupils. Mr. Brocklehurst had to buy better food for us. And he 
had to buy warm clothes for us. Mr. Brocklehurst never came to 
the school. 

The next year, Lowood School moved to a better place. It was a 
healthier place. There were new schoolrooms, new bedrooms and a 
new dining-room. The new buildings were bright and clean. The 
teachers were happy. After that, I was happy at Lowood School 
too. 

I was a pupil at Lowood School for six years. Then I became a 
teacher. I was a teacher at the school for two years. But I never 
returned to Gateshead Hall. And the Reeds never wrote to me. 

 



Thornfield Hall 

In 1833, I was eighteen years old. In the summer, Miss Temple left 
Lowood School. She got married. I wanted to leave Lowood too. I 
wanted a new life. 
'I will be a governess,' I thought. 
I put an advertisement in a newspaper. 

 
I had a reply to my advertisement. The reply was from Mr.s 

Fairfax of Thornfield Hall, near Millcote. Millcote was about 
seventy miles from Lowood School. Mr.s Fairfax wanted a 
governess for a little girl. 

I wrote to Mr.s Fairfax immediately. I was going to be a 
governess at Thornfield Hall! 

I travelled to Millcote in a coach. At Millcote, a servant met 
me. He took me to Thornfield Hall. At Thornfield Hall, another 
servant opened the door. She was smiling. She took me into a 
small, warm room. A lady was in the room. She was sitting by the 
fire. 



'Are you Mr.s Fairfax?' I asked her. 
'Yes, my dear,' she said. 'And you are Miss Eyre. Are you 

cold? Sit by the fire, Miss Eyre, A servant will bring you some 
food.' 

'Mr.s Fairfax is very kind,' I said to myself. 'I will be happy 
here.' 
'Will 1 see Miss Fairfax tonight?' I asked. 
Mr.s Fairfax looked at me. She smiled. 

'Miss Fairfax? No, no,' she said. 'Your pupil's name is not Miss 
Fairfax. Your pupil is Adele Varens. Adele's mother was a 
Frenchwoman. Adele is Mr. Rochester's ward. He takes care of 
her.' 
'Mr. Rochester? Who is Mr. Rochester?' I asked. 

'Mr. Edward Rochester is the owner of Thornfield Hall,' Mr.s 
Fairfax said. 'I am his housekeeper. I take care of Thornfield Hall. 
Mr. Rochester is not here now. He does not like this house. He is 
often away from home.' 

I was very tired. Mr.s Fairfax took me up the wide stairs. She 
took me to my room. I went to bed immediately. And I slept well. 

The next morning, I woke early. The sun was shining. I put on a 
plain black dress. I opened my bedroom door. I walked along a 
corridor and down the wide stairs. I walked out into the sunny 
garden. 

I turned and I looked up at my new home. Thornfield Hall was 
a beautiful house with many large windows. The garden was 
beautiful too. 



After a few minutes, Mr.s Fairfax came into the garden. She 
spoke to me. 

'Good morning, Miss Eyre,' she said. 'You have woken early. 
Miss Adele is here. After breakfast, you must take her to the 
schoolroom. She must begin her lessons.' 

A pretty little girl walked towards me. She was about eight 
years old. She spoke to me in French and I replied in French. 

 

After breakfast, I took Adele to the schoolroom. We worked all 
morning. Adele enjoyed her lessons and I was happy. 



In the afternoon, Mr.s Fairfax took me into all the rooms of 
Thornfield Hall. We looked at the paintings and at the beautiful 
furniture. We walked along the corridors, 

'Come up onto the roof, Miss Eyre,' Mr.s Fairfax said. 'You 
will see the beautiful countryside around Thornfield Hall.' 

We walked up many stairs. At last, we were at the top of the 
house. We walked along the top corridor. Mr.s Fairfax opened a 
small door and we walked onto the roof. 

'Look, Miss Eyre,' Mr.s Fairfax said. 'You can see for many 
miles.' 

We stood on the roof for a few minutes. Then we went back 
into the house. We walked carefully towards the stairs. The top 
corridor was narrow and dark. 
Suddenly, I heard a strange laugh. 
'Who is that, Mr.s Fairfax?' I asked. 
Mr.s Fairfax did not reply. She knocked on a door. 

'Grace!' she said. The door opened. Behind the door was a 
small room. A servant was standing at the door. 
'Be quiet, Grace, please,' Mr.s Fairfax said. 

The woman looked at Mr.s Fairfax. Then she closed the door. 

'That was Grace Poole,' Mr.s Fairfax said. 'She works up here. 
Sometimes she laughs and talks with the other servants. Don't 
worry about Grace. Please come downstairs now, Miss Eyre.' 



Mr. Rochester 

Three months passed. I had not met the owner of Thornfield Hall. 
Mr. Rochester had not come home. 

One January afternoon, I went out and I walked towards the 
road. I was going to the village of Hay. I was going to post a letter 
in the village. Hay was two miles from Thornfield Hall. The day 
was fine but it was very cold. I walked quickly and soon I was near 
the village. 

Suddenly, a big black-and-white dog ran past me. A moment 
later, a man on a black horse followed the dog. 

Then, I heard an angry shout. The dog ran past me again. It was 
barking loudly. I turned round. The horse had fallen on the icy 
ground and the man had fallen from the horse. 1 walked towards 
them. 
'Can 1 help you, sir?' I asked. 
'My horse fell. I've hurt my foot,' the man said. 

The horse stood up. The man tried to stand up too. But he could 
not stand. He fell onto the ground again. 

The man was about thirty-five years old. He was not handsome 
but he had a strong face. He had dark eyes and black hair. He was 
not very tall but his body was powerful. 
'I'll bring somebody from Thornfield Hall,' I said. 
'Do you live at Thornfield?' the man asked. 



 



'I am the governess,' I replied. 
'Ah, yes. The governess,' the man said. 'Help me, please.' 
The man stood up very slowly, and he put his hand on my 

shoulder. He walked slowly towards his horse. I helped him. He 
pulled himself onto the horse. 

Thank you. Now go home quickly,' the man said. And he rode 
away. 

I walked on to the village and I posted my letter. Then I 
returned to Thornfield Hall. Bright lights were shining in the big 
house. I went inside. 

A big black-and-white dog walked towards me. It came from 
the dining-room. I had seen the dog before. 
'Whose dog is that?' I asked a servant. 

'It's Mr. Rochester's dog,' the servant replied. 'Mr. Rochester 
has come home. But he has hurt his foot. His horse fell on some 
ice.' 

I smiled. The owner of Thornfield Hall had returned! But I did 
not see Mr. Rochester again that day. 

I saw Mr. Rochester the next day. He sent for me in the evening. I 
put on a clean dress. I brushed my hair carefully. 

Mr. Rochester was in the large sitting-room. He was sitting in a 
big chair. His right foot was on a small chair. Mr.s Fairfax and 
Adele were sitting with him. 
'This is Miss Eyre, sir,' Mr.s Fairfax said. 
Mr. Rochester looked at me. He did not smile. 



'Sit by the fire, Miss Eyre,' he said. 'Where have you come 
from?' 

'From Lowood School,' I replied. 'I was there for eight years.' 
'Eight years!' Mr. Rochester said. 'That is a long time! Who are 

your parents?1

'I have no parents, sir,' I answered. 'They are dead.' 
'But where is your home, Miss Eyre?' Mr. Rochester asked. 

'I have no home, sir. I have no family,' I said. 
'Why did you come to Thornfield Hall?' Mr. Rochester asked. 
'I wanted to leave Lowood, sir,' I replied. 'I put an 

advertisement in a newspaper. Mr.s Fairfax replied to my 
advertisement.' 

'Yes, I did,' Mr.s Fairfax said. 'Miss Eyre is a good teacher, Mr. 
Rochester.' 
Mr. Rochester smiled for the first time. 
'You are very young, Miss Eyre,' he said. 
'I am eighteen, sir,' I replied. 

Mr. Rochester smiled again. He did not ask me more questions. 

After that evening, I did not see Mr. Rochester for a few days. 
Then, one night, he sent for me again. 

'Sit near me, Miss Eyre,' he said. 'Mr.s Fairfax will talk to 
Adele.' 

I sat down quietly, but I did not speak. The fire was very 
bright. 1 saw Mr. Rochester's face clearly. I saw his 



large, dark eyes. He was smiling. He was happy. 
After a minute, Mr. Rochester spoke. 

'Miss Eyre,' he said. 'You are looking at me very carefully. Am 
I a handsome man?' 
'No, sir,' I said. 

'You speak the truth, Miss Eyre!' Mr. Rochester said. 'Look at 
me again. Am I a kind man?' 

'No, sir,' 1 said again. 'You are smiling now. But you are not 
always kind.' 

'That is true,' Mr. Rochester replied. 'I have had a difficult life. 
I have met bad people. I have been a bad person myself. Now 
Thornfield Hall is my home. But I hate this house. You are very 
young, Miss Eyre. You 

 
cannot understand me.' 
'You are right. I don't understand you, sir,' I said. I stood up. 



'Where are you going?' Mr. Rochester asked. 
'It is late. Adele must go to bed,' I said. 

'Are you frightened of me, Miss Eyre?' Mr. Rochester asked. 
'No, sir,' I replied. 'But you say strange things, sir.' 
Mr. Rochester smiled. 

'Take Adele to her bedroom now, Miss Eyre,' he said. 'We will 
talk again tomorrow.' 

After that night, we talked together many times. Mr. Rochester 
was an interesting man. But he was a strange man too. I often 
thought about him. 

 

'Why does Mr. Rochester hate Thornfield?' I asked myself. 
'Thornfield Hall is a beautiful place. But Mr. Rochester is not 
happy.' 



Fire! 

It was March. One night, I was in bed. But I was not asleep. The 
house was quiet. Suddenly, I heard a sound in the corridor outside 
my room. 

'Who's there?' I said. Nobody answered. Then I heard a strange 
laugh. 

I got out of my bed and I went quietly to the door. I listened. I 
heard another sound. Somebody was walking up the stairs to the 
top corridor. Then I heard somebody close a door. 

'Was that Grace Poole?' I said to myself. 'Yes, it was Grace. 
Why was she laughing? And why is she walking in the house at 
night? Is she mad? I must tell Mr.s Fairfax about this. 1 will speak 
to her now.' 

1 put on some clothes and 1 opened the door. There was a 
candle on the floor outside my room. The candle was burning. 

There was thick smoke in the 
corridor. I went into the corridor. 
I looked around me. The door of 
Mr. Rochester's bedroom was 
open. And the smoke was 
coming from Mr. Rochester's 
room! 



I ran into the room. 

 



  



 
I sat in a chair by the window. Time passed. At last, Mr. 

Rochester returned. 
'Please don't worry, Jane,' he said. 'Grace Poole is a strange 

woman. But she won't hurt anybody tonight.' 
I stood up. 'Goodnight, sir,' I said. 

Mr. Rochester held my hand. He looked at me and he smiled. 
'Thank you, my dear friend,' he said. 'You saved my life 

tonight, Jane.' 
'Goodnight, sir,' I said again. 

I went back to my bed. I was very tired. But at first, I could not 
sleep. Suddenly, I understood something. I loved Mr. Rochester! 
He had smiled at me. He had held my hand. Did he love me? I did 
not know. But I thought about Mr. Rochester for a long time. 



I did not see Mr. Rochester the next day. He did not send for me. 
In the evening, I went down to Mr.s Fairfax's sitting-room. The 

housekeeper was looking out of the window. 
'The weather has been good today,' Mr.s Fairfax said. 'Mr. 

Rochester had a good day for his journey.' 
'His journey? Where has he gone?' I asked. I was surprised. 
'He has gone to Ingram Park,' Mr.s Fairfax replied. 'Mr. 

Rochester will stay there for a week or more. He has many friends. 
All his friends will be at Ingram Park this week.' 
'Will there be any ladies at Ingram Park?' 1 asked. 

'Yes,' Mr.s Fairfax said. 'There will be many ladies there. Miss 
Blanche Ingram will be there. Mr. Rochester has known her for 
many years.' 
'Is Miss Ingram beautiful?' I asked. 
'She is very beautiful,' Mr.s Fairfax said. 
'Will Mr. Rochester marry her?' I asked. 

Mr.s Fairfax smiled. 'I don't know, Miss Eyre,' she replied. 'I 
don't know.' 

I was very unhappy. I went up to my bedroom. I looked in my 
mirror. 

'Jane Eyre,' I said to myself. 'You are not pretty. And you are 
poor. Mr. Rochester will never marry you. He will marry Miss 
Blanche Ingram. She is a rich lady. You are a poor governess. 
Forget Mr. Rochester, jane Eyre! Forget him!' 



Guests at Thornfield Hall 

Two weeks later, a letter arrived for Mr.s Fairfax. 
'Mr. Rochester will return on Thursday,' Mr.s Fairfax said. 

'Some of his friends will come here with him. There will be many 
guests at Thornfield Hall.' 

On Thursday evening, Mr.s Fairfax, Adele and I were in 
Adele's bedroom. Mr.s Fairfax was looking out of the window. 
'The guests are arriving now!' Mr.s Fairfax said. 

I went to the window and I looked out. There were three 
carriages. Two people were riding horses. Mr. Rochester was 
riding his big black horse. A beautiful young woman was riding a 
white horse. 

 



Mr.s Fairfax pointed to the young woman. 
'That is Miss Ingram,' the housekeeper said. Then she went 

downstairs. 
Adele wanted to go downstairs too, 

'No, Adele,' I said. 'We cannot go downstairs tonight. Mr. 
Rochester is talking to his guests.' 

The next day, Mr.s Fairfax came into the schoolroom. 
'Mr. Rochester wants you to meet his guests tonight, Miss 

Eyre,' she said. 'Adele must meet them too.' 
Later, Adele and I went quietly into the sitting-room. And 

soon, eight ladies came into the room. One of them was tall, dark 
and very beautiful. She was Blanche Ingram. Adele ran towards 
her. 
'Good evening, beautiful lady,' she said in French. 

'What a pretty little girl!' Blanche Ingram said. Miss Ingram 
spoke to the other ladies. And she spoke to Adele. But she did not 
speak to me. 

Half an hour later, the gentlemen came into the room. I looked 
at Mr. Rochester. He saw me, but he did not speak to me. 

Miss Ingram pointed at Adele. 'Why doesn't this little girl live 

at a school, Mr. Rochester?' she asked. 
'Adele learns her lessons at home,' Mr. Rochester replied. 'She 

has a governess.' 
'Oh, yes. That small woman by the window,' Miss Ingram said. 

'I had many governesses. I hated all of them. They were all ugly 
and stupid!' 
Later, Miss Ingram and Mr. Rochester sang some 



songs together, Mr. Rochester had a fine voice. I listened to the 
songs, then I left the room. Mr. Rochester followed me. 
'What is wrong, Jane?' he asked. 

'Nothing is wrong, sir,' I said. 'But I am tired. I am going to my 
room. Goodnight, sir.' 

 
'You are tired. And you are unhappy too,' Mr. Rochester 

replied. 'There are tears in your eyes. Rest now, Jane. But please 
come and meet my guests tomorrow evening. Don't forget, my —, 
don't forget, Jane.' 



The guests stayed at Thornfield Hall for two weeks. Every 
evening, I went to the sitting-room with Adele. Nobody spoke to 
me. Mr. Rochester and Miss Ingram were always together. 

One afternoon, Mr. Rochester went to Millcote. He returned 
late in the evening. I met him at the front door. 

'Another guest has arrived, sir,' I told him. 'His name is Mr. 
Mason. He has come from the West Indies.' 

Suddenly, Mr. Rochester's face was pale. He held my hand 
tightly. 
'Mason. The West Indies. Mason —' he said. 
'Are you ill, sir?' I asked. 

'Jane, my little friend, I've had a shock,' he said. 'Bring me a 
glass of wine, please.' 

I went quickly to the dining-room. I returned with a glass of 
wine and I gave it to Mr. Rochester. 
'What are my guests doing?' he asked. 

'They are eating and laughing, sir,' I replied. 'Mr. Mason is 
talking to the other guests.' 

'One day, they will all hate me,' Mr. Rochester said. 'Now go 
into the dining-room again. Tell Mason to meet me in the library.' 

I gave Mr. Mason the message. Then I went to my bedroom. I 
got into my bed. 

Later, I heard Mr. Rochester coming up the stairs with Mr. 
Mason. They were laughing and talking. Soon, I was asleep. 



A Terrible Night 

Some hours later, I woke up. A terrible cry had woken me. The 
moon was bright. Its light was shining through my window. I 
listened. Then I heard somebody shouting. 
'Help! Help! Rochester, help me!' 
The voice came from the top corridor. 
'Help! Help!' 

I got out of bed and I put on a dress and some shoes. I opened 
my door. All the guests were in the corridor outside the bedrooms. 
They were all asking questions. 

'What happened?' they asked. 'Is there a fire? Who is hurt? 
Where is Mr. Rochester?' 

'I am here!' Mr. Rochester said. He was walking down the 
stairs from the top corridor. 

'What is wrong, Mr. Rochester?' Miss Ingram asked. 'What has 
happened?' 

'Nothing is wrong,1 Mr. Rochester replied. 'One of the servants 
has had a bad dream. Go back to bed!' 

I went back to my room. But something was wrong. I did not 
get into my bed. I waited. Soon, somebody knocked on my door. I 
opened the door. Mr. Rochester was standing in the corridor. 

'Jane, follow me. Do not make a sound,' Mr. Rochester said. 
We went up to the top corridor. Mr. Rochester 



unlocked a door and we went inside a room. 
Mr. Mason was sitting on a chair in the room. His face was 

pale. And his shirt was covered with blood! Then I heard a terrible 
laugh. The sound came from the next room. 

 



'Grace Poole is a madwoman,' I thought. 'Why does Mr. 
Rochester have a mad servant?' 
Mr. Rochester spoke quietly to Mr. Mason. 
'I am going to bring a doctor, Richard,' he said. 

Then he spoke to me. 'Stay here, Jane. Wash Mr. Mason's arm. 
But do not speak to him.' 

Mr. Rochester left the room. I washed Mr. Mason's arm. We 
waited for Mr. Rochester and the doctor. Mr. Mason did not speak 
to me and I did not speak to him. 

After two hours, Mr. Rochester returned. The doctor was with 
him. The doctor looked at Mr. Mason's arm. 

'She bit me,' Mr. Mason said. 'I came up here. I wanted to see 
her. I wanted to help her. But she bit me!' 
'Be quiet now, Richard,' Mr. Rochester said quickly. 

The doctor put a bandage on Mr. Mason's arm. Mr. Rochester 
put Mr. Mason's coat round the injured man's shoulders. Then he 
spoke to me again. 

'Run downstairs, Jane. Unlock the small door at the side of the 
house,' he said. 'We will follow you.' 

I went quickly downstairs and I opened the door. Outside the 
door, a servant was waiting with a carriage. Mr. Mason and the 
doctor came out of the house. They got into the carriage. Then Mr. 
Rochester came out of the house too. Mr. Mason spoke to him 
through the window of the carriage. 
'Help her. Be kind to her, Rochester,' he said. 
'Yes, I will, Mason,' Mr. Rochester said. 
The servant drove the carriage away. 



'Will you walk in the garden with me, Jane?' Mr. Rochester 
asked. 'I do not want to sleep now.' 
'Yes, I will, sir,' I said. 

Soon, it was morning. The birds were beginning to sing. The 
flowers had a sweet smell. 

'It has been a strange night, Jane,' Mr. Rochester said. 'Were 
you frightened?' 

'I am frightened of Grace Poole,' I said. 'She will hurt you, one 
day.' 

'I am stronger than she is. She will not hurt me,' Mr. Rochester 
said. He looked at me for a few moments. 'Are you my friend, 
Jane?' he asked me. 
'Yes, sir. I will be your friend forever!' 1 replied. 

'Thank you, my dear,' Mr. Rochester said. 'I have made 
mistakes. Now, I want to be happy. That is not wrong, is it, Jane?' 

He stopped speaking for a minute. Then he said, 'Go into the 
house. I'll talk to you tomorrow.' 

But the next day, I had a letter from Gateshead Hall, my Aunt 
Reed's house. The letter was from my Cousin 
Eliza. 

 



I started the journey to my Aunt Reed's house immediately. I 
arrived there the next day. My Aunt Reed was very, very ill. She 
could not move. And she did not speak to me. I wanted to return to 
Thornfield Hall. I wanted to see Mr. Rochester. But Eliza wanted 
me to stay at Gateshead Hall. 

After three weeks, my aunt spoke to me at last. She spoke very 
slowly. 
'Are you Jane Eyre?' she asked. 
'Yes, Aunt Reed. I am Jane Eyre,' I replied. 

'There is a letter for you,' Aunt Reed said. 'It is in my desk. Call 
Eliza, please. She will get the letter.' 

Eliza came into the room. She opened the desk and she gave 
me a letter. 

 



'Read the letter, Jane,' my aunt said. The letter had come from 
Madeira. But it was three years old. 

 

'I answered that letter,' Aunt Reed said. 'I hated you, Jane. I did 
not want you to have your uncle's money. I wrote to John Eyre. I 
wrote, "Jane Eyre is dead. She died at Lowood School." I am 
sorry, Jane, I was wrong.' 

Mr.s Reed died that night. I left Gateshead Hall a few days 
later. I took my uncle's letter with me. 
Mr. Rochester met me at Thornfield Hall. 

'Welcome back to my house,' he said. 'This is your home, Jane.' 
'Thank you, sir,' I said. 'I am very happy here.' 

Mr. Rochester's guests had left. No other visitors came to 
Thornfield Hall. Every day, Mr. Rochester and I talked together. 
And every day, I loved him more. 



In the Garden 

In June, the weather was hot. One evening, I walked into the 
garden, Mr. Rochester was there too. 
'Do you like this house, Jane?1 he asked. 
'Yes, sir,' I replied. 

'Soon, Adele will go to live at a school, Jane,' he said. 'Then, I 
will not want a governess here. Will you be sad then, Jane? Will 
you leave Thornfield Hall?' 
'Leave?' I said quickly. 'Must I leave Thornfield?' 

'My dear —' Mr. Rochester stopped. He was silent for a 
moment. Then he said, 'I am going to be married soon.' 

'Oh, sir,' I said. 'Then I must go far away. Far away from 
Thornfield. Far away from you, sir.' I started to cry. 

'I will always remember you, Jane,' Mr. Rochester said. 'Will 
you forget me?' 

'No, sir,' I replied. 'I will never forget you. I don't want to leave 
Thornfield, sir. 1 don't want to leave you.' 

'Don't leave, Jane,' Mr. Rochester said. 'Stay here.' He smiled at 
me. 

'I must not stay here, sir,' I said. 'You are going to marry Miss 
Ingram. I am poor. I do not have a pretty face. But I have a heart. 
It is a loving heart, sir!' 
'Jane - I am not going to marry Miss Ingram,' Mr. 



Rochester said. 'She is rich. She is beautiful. You are poor. You 
are not beautiful. But I want to marry you! Will you marry me, 
Jane?' 
For a moment, I could not speak. 
At last, I asked, 'Do you love me, sir?' 
'I do,' he replied. 
'Then, sir, I will marry you,' I said. 
And Mr. Rochester kissed me. 

 



'My dearest Jane,' he said. 'Nothing can stop our marriage now. 
We will be married in a month, Jane!' 

We kissed again. Then I said goodnight and I went into the 
house. I went upstairs to my room. 
Later, I remembered my Uncle John Eyre's letter. 

'I will write to him in Madeira,' I said to myself. 'I will tell him 
about my marriage to Mr. Rochester. I am very happy. My uncle 
will be happy too.' 

 



Four weeks passed. Mr. Rochester was going to buy me many 
beautiful things. He was going to give me many presents. But I did 
not want these things. 

'No, Edward,' I said. 'I am not beautiful. I don't want beautiful 
things. I want you, Edward.' 

It was the month of July. Two days before our wedding-day, Mr. 
Rochester went away. 
'I will return tomorrow,' he said. 'I love you, Jane.' 

That night, I went to my bedroom early. My wedding dress and 
my wedding veil were in my room. I looked at them. 

'In two days, I will be Jane Rochester,' I said to myself. Then I 
went to bed. But I did not sleep well. 

The next day, Mr. Rochester returned. He looked at me 
carefully. 

'What is wrong, Jane?' he asked. 'Your face is pale. Are you 
frightened?' 

'I had a very strange dream last night,' I said. 'It was a dream 
about this house. But in my dream, Thornfield Hall had no roof. 
The walls were burnt. They were black. In my dream, I tried to 
find you. But you were not in the house.' 

'Are you afraid of a dream, Jane?' Mr. Rochester asked. 
'No, Edward,' I replied. 'But I woke up from my dream. There 

was a woman in my room. She was tall and heavy. She had long, 
black hair.' 
'The woman was holding a candle,' I said. 'She put 



the candle by my mirror. She put my wedding veil over her head 
and she looked in the mirror. Then I saw her face!' 

'It was a strange, terrible face, Edward,' I said. 'Suddenly, the 
woman tore my veil into two pieces. She threw the pieces on the 
floor!' 
'What happened next?' Mr. Rochester asked. 

'The woman held her candle near my face,' I replied. 'She 
looked at me and she laughed. Then she went away.' 

 

'This happened in your dream, Jane,' Mr. Rochester said. 
'It did not happen in my dream, Edward,' I said. 'This morning, 

my wedding veil was on the floor of my room. It was torn. It was 
in two pieces!' 

'But the woman did not hurt you, Jane,' Mr. Rochester said. 
'Sleep in Adele's room tonight, my dear. You will have no more 
bad dreams.' 



Mr. Rochester's Wife 

It was our wedding day. We were going to be married in a church 
near Thornfield Hall. After the marriage, we were going to travel 
to London. 

I got up early. I put on my wedding dress and I went 
downstairs. Mr. Rochester was waiting for me. At eight o'clock, 
we walked together to the church. The clergyman was standing by 
the door of the church. 

There were two other people inside the church -two men. They 
were sitting in a dark corner. I could not see them very well. 

The clergyman started to speak. At every marriage, the 
clergyman asks an important question. He asks the people in the 
church, 'Is there a problem about this marriage?' 

The clergyman spoke loudly. He asked this question and he 
waited. There was silence for a moment. And then one of the men 
in the dark corner stood up. He spoke loudly. 

'There is a problem. These two people must not be married!' he 
said. 

'There is not a problem!' Mr. Rochester said to the clergyman. 
'Please go on with the marriage.' 

'No, I cannot go on with the marriage,' the clergyman replied. 
He spoke to the man in the corner. 
'What is the problem, sir?' he asked. 



 

Mr. Rochester turned and looked at the man. 'Who are you? What 
do you know about me?' he asked angrily. 



'My name is Briggs, sir. I am a lawyer,' the man replied. 'I 
know many things about you. Fifteen years ago, you were married 
in the West Indies. Your wife's name is Bertha Mason. She is 
alive. She lives at Thornfield Hall.' 
'How do you know that?' Mr. Rochester shouted. 

The other man in the dark corner stood up. He walked towards 
us. It was Richard Mason. 

'Bertha Mason is my sister,' he said. 'I saw her at Thornfield 
Hall in April.' 

Mr. Rochester's face was pale. For a minute he was silent. 
Then he spoke quietly. 

'It is true,' he said. 'My wife is living at Thornfield Hall. She is 
mad. Come to the house - all of you! Come and see Mr.s 
Rochester! Come and see the madwoman!' 
We all left the church. Nobody spoke. 

At Thornfield, Mr.s Fairfax and Adele were waiting for us. 
They were smiling happily. 

'Nobody will be happy today!' Mr. Rochester said. 'We are not 
married!' 

Briggs, Mr. Mason, the clergyman and I followed Mr. 
Rochester. We followed him up the stairs. He took us to the top 
corridor. He unlocked a door and we went into a small room. I had 
seen this room before! 

We walked through the room to another door. Mr. Rochester 
unlocked this door and we saw a larger room. 
Grace Poole was sitting in the room. But another 



woman was there too. She was tall and heavy. Her dark hair was in 
front of her face. The woman turned and looked at us. I knew that 
terrible, mad face. I had seen it in my bedroom, two nights before. 

The madwoman saw Mr. Rochester. She screamed and she ran 
towards him. 
'Be careful, sir!' Grace Poole said. 

The madwoman was very strong. She screamed and she hit Mr. 
Rochester. But Mr. Rochester held her arms. 

 



'This woman is my wife!' Mr. Rochester said angrily. 'I wanted 
to forget about her. I wanted to marry this young girl, Jane Eyre. 
Was I wrong?' 

He was silent for a few moments. Then he spoke quietly. 
'Yes. I was wrong,' he said. 'I love Jane Eyre. But I was wrong. 

Now, go, all of you. I must take care of my mad wife!' 

I went slowly downstairs. Mr. Briggs, the lawyer, spoke to me. 
'I am sorry for you, Miss Eyre,' he said. 'You did nothing 

wrong. Your uncle, John Eyre, is sorry for you too. He read your 
letter. And then he met Richard Mason in Madeira. Your uncle is 
dying, Miss Eyre. He could not come to England. He sent me here. 
He wanted me to stop this marriage.' 

 



I did not answer. I went to my room and I locked the door. I 
took off my wedding dress. I put on a plain black dress. I lay down 
on my bed. 

'I am Jane Eyre today,' I thought. 'I will be Jane Eyre 
tomorrow. I will never be Jane Rochester. I must leave Thornfield 
Hall. I must never see Mr. Rochester again. My life here is 
finished.' 

Many hours later, I got off the bed. I unlocked my door. Mr. 
Rochester was waiting outside my room. 

 

'You are unhappy, Jane,' he said. 'I am very, very sorry. Jane, 
we will leave Thornfield, We will go to another country. We will 
be happy again.' 

'I cannot be your wife. I cannot live with you,' I said. 'I must 
leave you, Edward.' 



'Listen, Jane,' Mr. Rochester said. 'My father wanted me to 
marry Bertha Mason. Her family was very rich. I married her. My 
father was happy. But I was not happy. Bertha was mad, and she 
was a bad woman. Nobody told me about her. She was married to 
me, but she met other men. She was drunk every day. She tried to 
kill me many times.' 

'After four years, I brought Bertha here to Thornfield Hall,' Mr. 
Rochester said. 'Then 1 went away. Grace Poole took care of 
Bertha. I met other women. One of them was a French singer. She 
was Adele's mother. Adele is my daughter, Jane. But I did not love 
the French singer. I did not love anybody. I came home to 
Thornfield Hall. Then you came here and I loved you. I will 
always love you. Please stay with me, Jane.' 

'No, Edward,' I said. 'I am going away. We will be unhappy. 
But we must not be together. Goodbye, Edward.' 

'Oh, Jane! Jane, my love!' Mr. Rochester said. 'Don't leave me!' 
I kissed Mr. Rochester. 'God will help you, Edward,' I said. 
Quickly, I went into my room. I put some clothes into a bag. 

Later, 1 heard Mr. Rochester go into his room. Very quietly, I 
went downstairs. I opened the small door at the side of the house. I 
left Thornfield Hall and 1 walked to the road. It was dark. 
Soon, a coach came along the road. I gave all my 



money to the driver of the coach. I got into the coach. 

Many hours later, the coach stopped. It was ten o'clock in the 
morning. 

'You must give me more money now,' the driver said. 
'I have no more money,' 1 said. 

'You have no more money? Then you must get out of the 
coach,' the driver said, 

I got down onto the road. The coach moved away quickly. But 
I had left my bag in the coach. 

 
I looked around me. I was on a cold, empty moor. I was tired 

and hungry. I walked and walked. I had no money. I had no food. I 
walked until the evening came. At last, I lay down on the ground. I 
fell asleep immediately. 



Moor House 

The next morning, I woke late. I walked along the road for many 
miles. It started to rain. Soon my clothes were wet. I saw no one. I 
walked on the moor all day. In the evening, I was very tired again. 
'I must sleep soon,' I thought. 'Where shall I sleep?' 

Then I saw a light. I walked slowly towards it. The rain was 
falling heavily. But I saw a house near the road. I walked up to the 
house. I knocked on the door. I waited, but nobody opened the 
door. I stood outside the house. I was very cold and very tired. I 
could not move. 
'I am going to die here,' I said. 

Then I heard a young man's voice. The man was standing 
behind me. 

'No, you will not die at Moor House,' the man said. Then he 
unlocked the door of the house. 

He took me into the house. He took me into a warm sitting-
room. 
'Please sit down,' he said. 
Two pretty young women came into the room. 

'Give this poor woman some food, Diana,' the young man said. 
'Give her some dry clothes, Mary.' 
Then he spoke to me again. 

'My name is St John Rivers,’ he said. 'These are my sisters, 
Diana and Mary. What is your name, young woman?’ 



'My name is Jane — Elliot,' I said. I closed my eyes. 'Jane is very 
tired,' Diana said. 'She must go to bed now.' 
I stayed in bed at Moor House for three days. 

Diana and Mary Rivers were governesses. They were staying at 
Moor House for a few days. St John, their brother, was a 
clergyman. They were very kind to me. Soon, we were good 
friends. 

 



One day, St John asked me about my life. 
'I was a governess too,' I told him. And I told him about 

Lowood School. But I did not tell him about Thornfield Hall. I did 
not tell him about Mr. Rochester. 
'I want to work, St John,' I said. 'Will you help me?' 

'I have a plan,' St John said. 'A few miles from here, there is a 
village. Many of the girls in the village can-not read or write. I am 
going to pay for a girls' school in the village. But I must find a 
teacher for these girls.' 
'I will teach them, St John,' I said. 

'Good!' he said. 'There will be a small house next to the school. 
You will live there.' 
Three days later, a letter arrived for St John. 

'Diana, Mary - our Uncle John is dead,' he told his sisters. 'But 
we will not have any of his money.' 
He gave the letter to his sisters. They read it. 

'Uncle John was our mother's brother,' Diana told me. 'He was 
very rich. But he has given all his money to another niece. We do 
not know her.' 

Soon, I went to live in the village. I lived in the house next to the 
school. Every day, I taught the girls. My pupils worked hard. But I 
was not happy. Every day, I thought about Edward Rochester. 
'Does he think about me?' I asked myself. 
Four months passed. 

One day, St John Rivers came to my house. He was holding a 
letter. He was worried. 



'What is wrong?' I asked. 
'I want to ask you three questions, Jane,' he replied. 'Is your 

name Jane Elliot? Do you have another name? Do you know Jane 
Eyre?' 
I looked at him for a moment. I did not speak. 

'I have some news for Jane Eyre,' St John said. 'Jane Eyre was 
a pupil at Lowood School. And she was a teacher there. Then she 
was a governess at Thornfield Hall - the home of Mr. Edward 
Rochester.' 

'How do you know this?' I asked. 'What do you know about 
Mr. Rochester? How is he?' 

'I don't know,' St John said. 'This letter is from a lawyer. The 
lawyer tells a story about Mr. Rochester. Mr. Rochester had a mad 
wife. But he tried to marry Jane Eyre. She left Thornfield. Now 
this lawyer, Mr. Briggs, is trying to find her.' 

'I will tell you the truth, St John,' I said. 'My name is not Jane 
Elliot. My name is Jane Eyre. And I was a governess at Thornfield 
Hall. I know Mr. Rochester. Did Mr. Briggs write anything about 
Mr. Rochester?' 

'No. The letter is about you, Jane,' St John said. 'Your uncle, 
John Eyre is dead. John Eyre has given you twenty thousand 
pounds. You are rich, Jane.' 
'But why did Mr. Briggs write to you?' I asked. 

'My mother's name was Eyre,' St John said. 'She was your 
father's sister, Jane.' 
'Then you, Diana and Mary are my cousins!' I said. 
I thought carefully for a moment. 
'Write to Diana and Mary,' I said. 'They must come 



home. I will give all of you some of Uncle John's money.' 
The next day, I wrote to Mr. Briggs. I gave St John, Diana and 

Mary five thousand pounds each. I wrote to Mr.s Fairfax too, but 
she did not reply. 

Six months passed. I heard nothing from Thornfield Hall. I heard 
nothing about Mr. Rochester. 

Then, one day, I was walking on the moor. Suddenly, I heard a 
voice. There was nobody on the moor. But the voice was calling 
my name - 'Jane! Jane! Jane!' 

 

'That is Mr. Rochester's voice,' I said to myself. Then I 
shouted, 'I am coming, Edward. I am coming!' 
I ran to Moor House. I spoke to my cousins. 

'I am going to Thornfield Hall tomorrow,' I told them. I began 
my journey the next day. 



My Story Ends 

Two days later, I got out of a coach. I was standing on the road 
near Thornfield Hall. I ran across the fields. Was Mr. Rochester at 
Thornfield? Was he ill? 

And then I saw the house. The house had no roof. Its walls 
were burnt and black. Nobody was living there. 

 



I looked at the burnt, black house. I had seen this before. I had 
seen it in a dream! I was frightened. Where was Edward 
Rochester? 

I went to the village of Hay. I asked about Thornfield Hall. I 
asked about Mr. Rochester. 

'Three months ago, there was a fire at Thornfield Hall,' a man 
told me. 'The madwoman burnt the house. She was Mr. 
Rochester's wife.' 
'Was Mr. Rochester in the house?' I asked. 

'Yes, he was there,' the man replied. 'He tried to save his wife's 
life. He went into the burning house. But the madwoman jumped 
from the roof. She died.' 
'Was Mr. Rochester hurt?' I asked quickly. 

'Yes, he was badly hurt,' the man said. 'He is blind -he can't 
see. And he has only one hand.' 
'Where is he?' 1 asked. 'Where is he?' 

'He is living at Ferndean. It is an old house, about thirty miles 
away,' the man said. 

'Do you have a carriage? 1 asked. '1 must go to Ferndean 
immediately.' 

I got out of the carriage near Ferndean. I walked to the house. 1 
knocked on the door. A servant opened it. I knew her. 

'Oh, Miss Eyre! You have come,' she said. 'Mr. Rochester has 
been calling your name.' 
A bell rang in another room. 

'That is Mr. Rochester's bell,' the woman said. 'He wants some 
candles.' 



There were two candles on a table near the door. The woman 
lit them and she picked them up. 

'Mr. Rochester is blind, but he always burns candles in his 
room in the evenings,' she said. 

'Give the candles to me.' I said. 'I'll take them to him.' 
I opened the door of Mr. Rochester's room. His black-and-

white dog was sitting by the fire. The dog jumped up and ran 
towards me. 
'Who is there?' Mr. Rochester said. 

'Don't you know me, Edward?' I asked. 'Your dog knows me.' 
I put the candles on a table. I held Mr. Rochester's hand. 
'I know that voice. And I know this little hand,' Mr. Rochester 

said. 'Is that you, Jane?' 
'Yes, sir, I have found you at last,' I said. 'I will never leave 

you again.' Then I told Mr. Rochester my story. 
'Why did you leave your cousins, Jane?' Mr. Rochester asked. 

'Why did you come back to me? I am blind. I have only one hand.' 
'I will take care of you, Edward,' I said. 

'But I don't want a servant,' Mr. Rochester replied. 'I want a 
wife.' 

'You will have a wife, Edward,' I said. 'I will be your wife. I 
will marry you. I loved you very much at Thornfield Hall. Now I 
love you more.' 



 



Mr. Rochester and I got married. After a time, his eyes were 
better. He could see a little. He saw the face of our first child! 

My dear Edward and I are very happy. 



Exercises 

Making Sentences 

Write questions for the answers. 
 

1 Where did Jane Eyre grow up?
 Jane Eyre grew up at Gateshead Hall. 

2 Why 

 She lived with her aunt and uncle because her parents were dead. 
3 How 

 Jane was ten years old in 1825. 

4 What 

 Her cousins were called John and Eliza Reed. 

5 Did 

 No, Mr.s Reed did not like Jane. 

6 Where 

 Mr.s Reed sent Jane to Lowood School. 

7 Who 

 Mr. Brocklehurst was the owner of Lowood School. 

8 Was 

 No, Lowood School wasn't a healthy place. 

9 How 

 Jane stayed at the school for eight years. 

10 When 

 Jane became a governess in 1833.
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1 Who wrote Jane Eyre from Thornfield Hall?  
a   __ Edward Rochester. 
b   V Mr.s Fairfax. c   __ Grace Poole. 
2 Who was the owner of Thornfield Hall? 
a   __ Edward Rochester. 
b   __ Mr.s Fairfax. c   __ Mr.s Varens. 



3 Adele was Mr. Rochester's ward. What is a ward? 
a __ A child under the protection of an adult. 

5 

e. 

6 Where did Jane meet Mr. Rochester for the first time? 
om at Thornfield Hall. 

illage of Hay. 
c __ At Ingram Park. 

r. Rochester? 

8 What did Mr. Rochester look like? 
a __ He was tall and handsome with dark brown hair. 
b __ He was tall and blond with blue eyes. 
c __ He had a strong face, dark eyes and black hair. 

b __ An orphan. 
c __ A child from another marriage. 

4  Mr.s Fairfax said: 'Mr. Rochester is often away from home.' 
Why? 
a __ He often sailed to the West Indies. 
b __ He had business on the island of Madeira. 
c __ He did not like Thornfield Hall. 

Jane heard strange laughter at the top of the house. Who was 
making the noise? Mr.s Fairfax said it was: 
a __ Adele Varens. 
b __ Bertha Mason. 
c __ Grace Pool

a __ In the dining ro
b __ On the road to the v

7 What had happened to M
a s dog had bitten him. 
b EU He had fallen off his horse. 

EU Hi

c EU He had lost his horse. 
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There was a 19..................................................................

20.....................................room. The candle was ......................................There



thick 21 .......................................................................... in the 
rridor. I looked 

Mr. Rochester's bedroom was 
23..........

smoke w
Mr. Roc

corridor. I went into the co
22.......................................................................... me. The door of 
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Writing 

There was a fire in Mr. Rochest  at Thoer's bedroom rnfield Hall. 
Jane rescued Mr. Rochester. 

e Jane's story about 

s room 
2 curtains on fi
3 Mr. R lying on bed 
4 Mr. R asleep 
 

/ ran into Mr. Rochester's room.

Look at the pictures and the notes. Writ
the fire. 
1 run into Mr. R’

re 

 

 

 

5 try to wake Mr. R 
6 shake him, shout 
7 does not wake up 
8 see jug of water next to bed  

                                                                                              

 

 

9 pick up jug 
10 thrw water over bed and Mr.R 



11 put out flames 

 

 

 

                                                                                              

12 feel shocked 
13 Mr. R sits up 
14 he asks: 
15 I answer: 

 
 

 

                                                                                                              

 

Multiple Choice 2 Tick the best answer. 

1 Jane looked at herself in a mirror. What did she think? 
a     __ 'I am not pretty and I am poor.' 
b __ 'I will make a good wife for Mr. Rochester.' 
c __ 'I am beautiful and I will be rich.' 

ornfield Hall. Was Mr. Rochester 

. 

What happened to Mr. Mason? 
    __ Someone bit his arm. 

e stabbed him. 

2 Mr. Mason arrived at Th
pleased? 
a __ Yes, he was very excited
b __ No, he was rather shocked. 
c __ No, he was very angry. 

3 
a 
b __ Someon
c __ Someone shot him. 



4 Aunt Reed showed Jane a letter from her uncle. What did it say? 
a __ Her parents were not dead. 
b __ He wanted her to live with him. 
c __ He wanted to give her all his money when he died. 

 stop Jane and Mr. Rochester's marriage? 
__ John Eyre. 
__ Grace Poole. 
__ jane Eyre. 

d brother. 
d uncle. 

ins. 

7 r. Rochester at Ferndean. Why didn't he know her 
 first? 
__ Because he was blind. 
__ Because he hadn't seen her for a long time. 
__ Because she had changed a lot. 

5 
a 

Who wanted to

b 
c 

6 Who were Diana, Mary and St John Rivers? 
a __ Jane's sisters an
b __ Jane's aunts an

 cousc __ Jane's

J ne found Ma
at
a 
b 
c 


